	Ques.No. 
	Reference (if given in question)
	Questions for RFP No.  201207349 Maine Dept of Health and Human Services Professional Services for HIT 
	Response 

	1.
	
	Does Maine have a maximum budget amount in mind for this project?
	There is no set maximum budget.  The awarding of points for the costs is mandated by State rules according to the formula described in the RFP.  (Also, see response to No. 5)

	2
	
	The RFP makes no mention about work location. Is off-site activity with periodic on-site visits acceptable? If so, can Maine characterize the on-site presence required and the location(s)?
	A portion of the legal work group facilitation and research may off-site.  The successful bidder would be required to travel to 242 State Street, Augusta, Maine for LWG meetings and coordination with the HIT Program Manager.
Both the information technology business specialist and the HIT program specialist need to be on-site at 242 State Street, Augusta approximately 95% of the time to access systems that cannot be accessed off-site.   

	3
	p. 6, B.7: “Bidders may bid on one, two or all three of the sections of the scope of services”
	If bidders respond to more than one section, are the sections evaluated independently (meaning, a vendor could receive an award for one part as proposed but not another), or only in aggregate? If sections will be evaluated independently, can bidders have some additional proposal pages to make their proposal clearer with respect to multiple sections?

Separately, is Maine open to a team-centered approach to fulfilling multiple sections of  the RFP?
	Each section is evaluated independently.  Bidders should submit a proposal for each section (LWG, IT business specialist, and program specialist) that it wants to bid on. We encourage applicants to keep to the page limits, yet will consider responses that minimally exceed the length as described in the RFP.   Maine is open to a team-centered approach.  

	4
	p. 6, C: “…for-profit corporations…”
	We are a limited liability company, not a corporation. Are we eligible to bid? Is the intent of this really “for-profit companies” of any type?
	It is not the intent of the RFP to limit the type of entity that may submit bids.  

	5
	p. 7-8, A (Required services and expectations)
	While the duties are clear as described for these three roles, the amount of services that will be required is not clear enough to quote a price since the scope of many of the tasks are necessarily unknown at this time (for instance, “provide support…”). Can Maine identify a full-time equivalent (FTE) staff expectation for each of the three roles to help bidder’s gauge the level of effort expected by the State?
	Bidders may assume that the LWG facilitator, IT business specialist, and the Program HIT specialists are each one FTE.  In other words, three FTEs.  To help facilitate responses, bidders may want to show an “hourly rate not to exceed” total price. We will accept responses for less than or more than one FTE for each of the three areas in the RFP and evaluate them accordingly. We will also accept a team approach where more than one individual performs some of the duties while other individuals perform other duties. The bidder needs to indicate for each section that the bidder is bidding on, the total FTE for that section.  (for example, .75 total or 1.5 total, etc) 

	6
	p. 13, IV.A.4: “Bidders are asked to be brief and to respond to each question and instruction listed in Part IV, Proposal Submission Requirements and Evaluation.  Number each portion of the proposal to correspond to the relevant section of the RFP.  The narrative is limited to a total of six pages. “
	We are still a little unclear as to what is included in this 6-page limit, even with the clarification in paragraph 5. Referencing the specific items in the RFP, are these all included in the 6-page limit as described in the Proposal Outline (Section B, bottom of p. 13):
· Description of organization, including
· 1.1: Organization Description and Qualifications (all questions)
· 1.2: Organization Experience
· 1.3: Description of Experience with Similar Projects, but NOT including copies of letters of recommendation or MOUs
· Section II: Specifications of Work to be Performed (1 & 2)
· Section III: Cost Proposal, only 3: Budget Narrative
Is there anything else to be included in the six-page limit?
	See response to no. 3.  We ask that responders make every attempt to respond to the proposal outline, Sections II and III keeping within the 6-page target.  The question correctly identifies all the areas to be covered in the 6-pages.  

	7
	p. 16, 4: Organizational Status
	We are a limited liability company registered in another state with no physical presence in Maine. Do we need to register as a foreign company in Maine? If so, can we do so once awarded a contract (as opposed to now at submission time)? If not, what documentation from another state, if any, does Maine require of our company’s status?
	In terms of the question about needing to register as a foreign company, it is recommended that you contact the Maine Secretary of State under  Maine.gov for information on this issue.  In the meantime, you should submit documentation from the state where you are registered. 

	8
	
	How many awards [sic] be made by state?

	See responses for questions No. 3 and 5. 

	9
	
	Do we need to submit resume of candidates who will work or sample resume or no resume needed at this time?

	You must submit the resume(s) of candidates who will actually be working on the project, with your bid.  

	10
	
	Do we need to submit maximum hourly rate for each position?

	See response No. 5. 

	11
	
	Is it a [sic] IDIQ type contract where task order will be issued later to awarded vendor to compete again?

	This RFP is for the specific services described in the RFP for a set period of time, which may be extended according to the RFP provisions.   As such, it is expected that the bidders make every attempt to bid on each of the sections (LWG, IT business specialist, and/or Program Specialist) using the guidelines in the response to questions No. 3 and 5.  In that respect, the RFP may not result in what is generally thought of as an  “Indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity” type of contract. 

	12
	
	Who has been providing this service? 

	The services have, and will continue to, evolve as the State’s HIT programs continue to be implemented and updated according to federal and State laws.  The LWG effort began in May, 2012 and services have been divided and performed by several staff, including State employees and contractors.  The IT business services and the Program specialist services have similarly been divided among State employees and contractors depending on the program needs.  

	13
	
	Who is incumbent?

	See response to No. 12 

	14
	
	Does RFP requires [sic] only 2 professionals Program Operations and Reporting and Business Information HIT specialist ONLY?

	See response to No. 5

	15
	
	What is the budget? 

	See response to No. 1 and No. 5

	16
	
	Is there hourly rat [sic] limit?

	See response to No. 10.

	17
	
	Do we need to provide hourly rate for both professionals in the cost proposal?

	See response to No. 5 and No. 10

	18
	
	could you inform how soon will the registration process complete? 
	If the question is how soon does the State expect to evaluate the bids, the response is that the State expects to evaluate all bids by end of August, 2012 at which time it is expected that one or more bidders will be contacted by the State for further review and potential negotiations of a contract(s).   

	19
	
	[Can you advise us if ] we could send our W 9 form that we have already or do we have to download the form available on the link and send the same
	Bidders may send the W9 form that they already have along with their response. 

	20
	
	Is a proposer required to proposed [sic] on both sections in the RFP or can a company propose on only one section? 

	See response to No. 3 and 5. 

	21
	Page 5: I.A.2
	Does the Department require that the Program Operations and Reporting Specialists maintain an on-site presence 100% of the time, or is the Department open to alternative options proposing a team of consultants fulfilling the duties of these positions?

	See response to No. 2

	22
	
	Is there a vendor currently providing these services to the Department?

	See response to No. 12

	23
	
	Does the Department have an estimated value for the work requested in this solicitation?

	See response to No. 1

	24
	Page 13: IV.B

	Can the Department confirm the proposed outline format?  The guidelines do not include Understanding and Ability to Perform Role which is listed on the following page as being worth 30 points
	The Proposed Format and Outline and the Specifications of Work to be performed under Section II should address the bidder’s experience and work to be performed that covers the section, Understanding and Ability to Perform Role, in a manner that allows the State to determine and award points for the Understanding and Ability to Perform Role section.   

	25
	Page 15: III.2

	Can the Department confirm the specific list of budget forms necessary to submit with this proposal?  Some of the forms listed under Rider F did not seem relevant to this solicitation. 
	Section III.2 Budget Forms is a description of the forms that the selected contractor must submit for payment under the approved contract. The forms described and found on the link under 2. are not  forms that the bidder must submit with the bid.  However, the Bidder must submit Section III.3 Budget Narrative, which is a brief budget narrative--As an example, the bidder may submit a table/spreadsheet document that lists the tasks and cost by hours and a not to exceed amount for each task or for all of the tasks. If the bidder is submitting a bid for more than one section, each section should have its own budget narrative.   

	26
	Page 14,  d.	Memorandum of Understanding:

	Question: Is a MOU required when an entity is a sole proprietor? If it doesn’t apply to a Sole Proprietor would one need to include a sheet titled “Memorandum of Understanding: N/A - Sole Proprietor” to include the MOU statement in the RFP?

	An MOU is only required if the bidder who is submitting the bid has a key partner who will be performing a substantive part of the work. Bidders should answer this and other similar type questions by responding – not applicable, sole proprietor. 

	27
	Page 14 and 15

Key Personnel and Qualifications  

	When the response is “sole proprietor is it proper to format as shown below?
       Key Personnel and Qualifications
a. Sole proprietor
b. John Doe, Sole proprietor
c. I am a Sole Proprietor.

	If the bidder is the only individual who will perform the work under the contract, the bidder should indicate – “John Doe, sole proprietor who will perform all services under the contract.” 

	28
	Page 15
Section III	Cost Proposal
1.	General Instructions:

	Question: When writing the cost proposal and completing the budget forms may a respondent that will be less than full time during a portion of the contract submit an hourly rate and a not to exceed amount rather than a salary amount for the contract?


	See response to No. 5

	29
	Page 15
1. Budget Forms:

	Question: The web page indicated has a title: Rider “F”; within that section are various Budget forms however there is no section labeled ‘Budget Forms’. The first one under Rider ‘F’ listed is: “Budget Form – Generic”. Is this the form we are to complete to submit to “provide a detailed breakdown of expenses in performing the services as described in this RFP and in the Bidder’s proposal”? The form addresses revenue and does not seem to be the correct form to use. Can you advise which State budget form would be required to respond to this RFP?

	See response to No. 25

	30
	
	The RFP identifies three separate requirements:  1. Legal Work Group Facilitator and Researcher, 2. Professional Services for MaineCare HIT Operations, “Program Operations” (Operations HIT Specialist), and 3. Professional Services for MaineCare HIT Operations, “Reporting and Business Information Technology Services”.  For the Program Operations and Reporting and Business Information Technology Services Requirements, does the State envision 1 full-time resource for each of these areas?  

	See response to No. 5. 

	31
	
	For the Program Operations and Reporting requirements, is there an expectation that resources would be located on-site in Augusta to perform the required tasks?


	See response to No. 2

	32
	
	Regarding the requirements for the “Operations HIT Specialist”

1. Page 7, Section a, cites “support including completion of project activities and deliverables for the MaineCare EHR Incentive Program”.  Does a project plan exist that documents he [sic] activities that will be required of the Operations HIT Specialist?  If so, will you provide to prospective bidders?
1. Page 7, Section a, cites: “educating professionals about the MU program, conducting training sessions on the MU program and quality measures”.  Approximately how many training sessions are expected?  Who will be the target of the training?  How many attendees would be expected in a typical training session?  Who will develop training materials?  
1. Page 7, Section a:  Who are the “professionals” referred to in this section?
1. Page 10, Goal #2:  Timely and Efficient Review and Implementation of Streamline Review Process:  Has a plan and timeline been established for the review and implementation as described.  If so, will you provide to prospective bidders?


	
For more information about the Operations HIT Specialist, please see  Maine’s approved State Medicaid Health Plan which can be found at:  

http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/oms/HIT/ehr_incent.htm


Specifically, see: Section C – Activities necessary to administer and oversee the E HR incentive Program 

Information about the Streamline Review Process may be found at:  

http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/oms/HIT/ehr_incent.htm

under the Office of the State Coordinator link. 

	33
	
	Regarding the requirement for “Reporting and Business Information Technology Services”

1. Page 7, Section b, cites “support for OMS HIT Project Manager and complete project activities and deliverables for the MaineCare EHR Incentive Program including developing electronic reports, translating data into GIS format and data-points, develop reporting mechanisms comparing adult and children’s MU measurement topics, and serve as liaison with the Information Technology unit”.  What systems will be the source for the desired electronic reports?  What tools and or technology will be used to extract data and generate required reports?  From what systems will the data be sourced and what tools or applications will be available to perform the GIS requirement and adult/child MU analysis? 
1. Page 7, Section b, cites “…and update and redesign as appropriate, the OSC and the OMS web pages and files, including formatting and creating historical storage capacities and records”.  These activities as described are very broad, potentially requiring an equally broad range of skills.  Is this requirement to update content using some type of content management tool?  Or is the intent to perform actual redesign and development to incorporate new functionality through a formal systems development process?  If the later, what technologies/tools/platform are required? (Note, these questions also apply to item 7 on page 11)
1. Page 11, Item 8: “8.           Perform business tests required by technical Office of Information Technology unit to timely and accurately implement system changes as required by business, CMS, or technical IT requirements”  For which systems does this requirement apply?  What tools or technologies will be employed in the testing?

	2. The systems used for the MaineCare HIT reporting are an Oracle database and SQL.  The GIS formatting consists of Excel spreadsheet compilation which is then submitted to GIS mapping contractors (outside the scope of this RFP). 
2. The services required will be to update content using a content management tool.  The services do not include new functionalities.  
2. The State’s Office of Information Technology designed, developed and implemented Maine’s HIT payment system.  As such, the testing required involves the user to enter information into the system to determine if the upgrades and enhancements perform as expected.  The technical expertise for the program writing, testing and QA is performed by the OIT office. 


	34
	
	Cost Proposal.  Based on the RFP, the intended contract appears to be a Time and Material agreement.  Can you confirm?

	See response to no. 5.   

	35
	
	Cost Proposal, “Budget Forms”.  Following the link in the RFP documents leads to a page where there appear to be 8 different budget forms.  They also all appear to be internal forms for program tracking.  Which specific forms are required?  Alternatively, would it be acceptable for a bidder to simply propose a labor rate for each proposed resource, a budget for expected expenses, and an estimate of the number of hours based on an expected start in August of 2012 and a completion in June of 2013?

a. 
	See response to no. 25.  It is acceptable for a bidder to simply propose a labor rate for each proposed resource, a budget for expected expenses, and an estimate of the number of hours based on an expected start in August of 2012 and a completion in June of 2013.


	36
	
	On page 15 under Section III Cost Proposal subsection 2 Budget Forms, it references a link and indicates that forms under ‘Budget Forms ‘ need to be filled out. There are spreadsheets that include ‘Budget Form’ in its title, including one that indicated ‘Generic’. Can you clarify which forms need to be submitted with this RFP? 


	See response to No. 25. 

	37
	
	RFP Page 5, Section 2: What is the size of the staff currently working for MaineCare HIT program operations and what are their roles? 

	See response to No. 12.  Currently, there is a State employee who is the manager of the program; two State audit staff, several interns who perform business and IT functions; and up to four business or technical contractors. None of the positions devote 100% of their time to the HIT program. The staffing levels vary between 25% to approximately 75%.        

	38
	
	RFP Page 5, Section 2: What percentage of time will the OMS HIT Project Manager require the (1) Program Operations HIT Specialist and (2) Reporting and Business Information HIT Specialist be on-site? 

	See response to No. 2

	39
	
	RFP Page 9, Section 2.a and Page 10, Section  b: What level of access to historical claims data will be made available to the contractor to fulfill the responsibilities described in the RFP for the Program Operations HIT Specialist and Reporting and Business Information HIT Specialist? 

	The contractor will have appropriate levels of access to Medicaid data and system to perform the functions necessary to meet service levels.   

	40
	
	RFP Page 9, Section 2.a: How are Meaningful Use Measures (MU) and Clinical Quality Measures (CQM) being captured by MaineCare? Are the following data fields, or equivalents, able to be extracted from that system electronically? 
a. Eligibility Period 
b. EHR Reporting Period 
c. NPI 
d. Provider ID 
e. Payee ID 
f. Group Affiliation 
g. Payment Amount 
h. Payment Date 
i. Numerators, Denominators, “yes”/”no” Attestations, and Exclusion elections for all MU Measures and CQMs 
j. Certified Health Information Technology Product List (CHPL) number 
Payment number (Payment 1, Payment 2, Payment 3, etc.)
	Meaningful Use and Clinical Quality Measures are captured through a professional completing a desk-top application (Wizard) which automatically sends the reporting results to MaineCare.  All of the data fields a.-j. and payments are extracted electronically through MaineCare systems.   

	41
	
	RFP Page 9, Section 2.a: The RFP indicates that one of the tasks of the Program Operations HIT Specialist is to complete a pre-payment review process. Has the State delegated or assigned the authority for post-payment review of AIU and/or Meaningful Use payments? If so, where do these tasks reside? 

	The post-payment review and audit of AIU and MU payments is conducted and reported on by the Maine’s DHHS Audit division which resides within Maine DHHS.  

	42
	
	RFP Page 5, Section 2: How will the responsibilities of the Maine Regional Extension Center (MEREC) complement or overlap with the description of the required services and expectations of the Legal Work Group and Professional Services for MaineCare HIT Program Operations? 

	MEREC services are performed under contract with the Office of the National Coordinator and Maine’s HealthInfoNet, while the MaineCare HIT program resides in the Maine DHHS Office of the State Coordinator for HIT.  MEREC and MaineCare HIT programs work collaboratively to communicate and assist health care professionals.  More detailed information about MEREC and MaineCare HIT programs can be found at http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/oms/HIT/ehr_incent.htm

Under the link to the State’s Medicaid Health Plan. 

The MEREC has no expected formal link or overlap with the duties of the LWG.  

	43
	
	RFP Page 3, Section A.1:To the best of your knowledge, how many regional, private, other Health Information Exchanges are currently operating in Maine? 


	Using the common understanding of the term “Health Information Exchange,” (capital letters) Maine has one “HIE.”  However, due to the nature of affiliations between medium and large health care organizations and practices/professionals, there are systems that may have one or more attributes of an HIE within their systems or affiliations. 

	44
	
	RFP Page 5, Section 2: How many monthly hours are anticipated to fulfill the role of the Program Operations HIT Specialist? How many monthly hours are anticipated to fulfill the role of the Reporting and Business Information HIT Specialist?


	See Response to No.  5. 

	45
	
	Section II.B.2 (pages 9-11): Is there a provider compliance component to these services? For example, will these roles be responsible for auditing provider incentive payments or assessing compliance for meaningful use?

	See response to no. 41.

	46
	
	Section II.B.2.a, Goal 3, Task 6 (page 10): Regarding “assisting professionals in the application and attestation process,” will the specialist help with preparing for audits or conducting meaningful use or provider incentive payment audits? 

	See response to No. 41 and 32.  HIT specialists do provide information to the DHHS auditors and meet with Auditors on a regular basis to discuss audit protocols and CMS audit requirements.  However, the actual review and audits are performed by the DHHS auditors.    

	47
	
	Section II.B.2.a, Goal 3, Task 6 (page 10): Please clarify what OSC is seeking with respect to “analyzing data and reports.” Could examples of this type of work be provided to help clarify OSC’s needs for this task?  

	See response to No. 32.  Examples of work include, but are not limited to, querying the payment system to determine the average length of time it takes for applications to be processed and following up on applications; identifying E H R systems that require additional discussions with the NLR/ONC on the certified systems list and issues; the completion of a weekly “check-book” account balance for the HIT program; development and completion of monthly reports submitted to CMS; analyzing current reports required by Maine DHHS to determine their current use and recommend changes/deletions or updates as appropriate; and analysis of the provider types and penetration rates of EH Rs to better plan for targeted communications and other outreach efforts.   

	48
	
	Section II.B.2.a, Goal 3, Task 6 (page General: It indicates throughout the RFP that the OSC is “requesting proposals from individuals or organizations” to provide services, and, on page 5, section 2 it states the OSC “seeks two individuals” to assist in the operations and reporting requirements for Program Operations. Will you accept a team approach to this project or are you looking for single, full-time individual(s) in each area for the services requested? 

	Bidders may submit bids based on a team approach.  There is no requirement that a bid must be based on a single or full-time individual.  

	49
	
	General: Does the Department have a budget for this project? If so, can you share this with bidders?


	See response to No. 1 and 5.  



	50
	 
	What is Maine's expectation regarding the percent of time that staff is to be onsite?  Is meeting facilitation onsite or to be conducted through electronic means? Are their differing expectations for the staff positions?
	See response to No. 2  

	51
	
	Will the State give preference to responses that address the full scope of services - all three of the sections - rather than one or more sections? 
	Due to the differing nature of the work, each section will be evaluated separately.   

	52
	3. Research applicable provisions of the HITECH (including the HIPAA amendments) and other applicable federal laws; other states’ laws and policies; Maine’s General Privacy Laws, HIV Privacy Law, and Mental Health Privacy Law; Maine Health Data Organization (MHDO) statutes and rules; and Department of Health and Human Services statutes and rules to inform the LWG on privacy, security, secondary use and other appropriate topics and issues;
	Can you clarify that the research to be conducted under this scope of work to support the deliberation and findings of the Legal Work Group includes the questions listed in the Introduction of the RFP pertaining to the definition of a state designated health information exchange and how it differs from a health information exchange?

Will the State give preference to responses where proposed tasks are conducted by legal professionals? Is the state open to a contractor team offering high level facilitation and targeted  research and subject matter expertise that includes but is not limited to explicitly legal professionals? 
 
	The greater majority of the research to be conducted under the scope of the LWG section of the RFP includes the questions regarding the SDHIE including the issue of Protected Health Information (both current federal and state laws and rules, and research on appropriate access and exchange of PHI to and from and within a SDHIE and health care providers and state/fed agencies.) 

The State will evaluate the bids based on the point system and formulas in the RFP.  The RFP is not limited to individuals who are lawyers.  The state is open to a team approach that includes, but is not limited to explicitly legal professionals.       

	53
	Phase I: Successful review of existing and proposed Health Care provider data, reporting forms and mechanisms. Phase II: Implementation of the streamline documents and process and identification and review of second tier of review.
	[bookmark: _GoBack]Does the RFP expect the vendor to review all provider and hospital reporting data and reporting mechanisms or only those related to meaningful use data and reportting? [sic] If former, will Maine make available a list of reporting mechanisms and details so this activity can be accurately scoped?
	The Streamline Review portion of the RFP involves the facilitation and project management of a process that includes a group of private and public health care providers and state agencies reviewing existing forms and reports, and making recommendations to the Maine DHHS for elimination or revision of duplicative or outdated forms.  The forms, reports and data will be provided to the contractor.  See response No. 32. 

	54
	Goal #2: Successful development of electronic reporting mechanisms
Performance Indicators:
	What does the Maine performance expectation mean for "translating data into GIS format and data-points"?  Does the RFP expect the vendor to conduct the coordinant [sic] mapping and posting activities?
	See response to no. 33 for both GIS and storage records questions.  

	
	Goal #3: Timely, Informative and Easily Understood Redesigns and Updates to the OSC and the OMS HIT web pages
Performance Indicators:
	What is the defintion [sic] of "State-acceptable
formatting and creating historical storage capacities and records," and what formatting and storage capabilities are available to support this task?
	

	55
	Specific Tasks to meet Performance Indicators #5.
	What is the scope of "conduct trainings"?  Please provide how many and anticipated timing.
	See response No. 32. 

	56
	Specific Tasks to meet Performance Indicators #9
	What are the inputs and expected output of the GIS coding activities?  Specifically what provider participation data would be provided, and what will be the frequency and hand-off process for the "periodic updates to Maine mapping programs?
	See response No. 33. 

	57
	Bidders are to complete and submit standard State budget forms to provide a detailed breakdown of expenses in performing the services as described in this RFP and in the Bidder’s proposal. The forms can be found at the following website in the section titled “Budget Forms”:
http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/purchased-services/contract-2012/index.html
	Can you clarify which forms we are required to complete and submit? It is not clear based on what I find via the link provided in the RFP.
	See response to no. 25 and 35. 



